CAHTS

CAPITAL AREA TRARNSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters.

REGULAR MEETING
OF THE
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
CAPITAL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM
AND
PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION
SEPTEMBER 17, 2019
4:30 pm
BREC Administration Building 6201 Florida Boulevard
Commission Room
Baton Rouge, LA 70806

AGENDA

l. CALL TO ORDER: Mr. Mark Bellue
1. ROLL CALL: Ms. Amie McNaylor
lll.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF AUGUST 20, 2019 MEETING: Mr. Mark Bellue
IV. PRESIDENT’S ANNOUNCEMENTS: Mr. Mark Bellue
V. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS

1. Executive and Financial Report: Mr. Bill Deville and Executive Staff
VI. COMMITTEE REPORTS AND ANY ACTION THEREON
Finance & Executive: Mr. Mark Bellue (no meeting held)
Technical, Policies & Practices: Dr. Peter Breaux
Audit: Mr. Kahli Cohran (no meeting held)

Planning: Mr. Kevin O’Gorman
Community Relations: Ms. Linda Perkins

P B o

Vil.  ACTION ITEMS

1. Consideration of authorization for the CEO to renew strategic creative partner
Rockit Science contract

2, Consideration of authorization for the CEO to renew the RouteMatch annual
technical support, warranty, and technical contract for a period of one year



3. Consideration of authorization to add John Cutrone as signatory on behalf of
CATS for all Whithey/Hancock Bank accounts and to remove Jeanette Eckert as
signatory and consideration of authorization for the CEO to execute all
documents required by Whitney/Hancock Bank to effectuate these changes

4, Consideration of approval of CATS ADA Paratransit Manual

5. Consideration of authorization for the CEO to enter into a lease for new office
space for CATS
6. Consideration of Authorization for the CEO to settle the claims of Lionel Hayes

and Sharon Chambers under the terms of the settlement and judgment payment
policy adopted by the Board on July 20, 2004 as amended. (This matter might
possibly be discussed in executive session.) As required by the Open Meeting
Law, notice is hereby given that this claim is pending in the 19" Judicial District
Court and is Suit Number 669,306, Sec. 22; and that Lionel Hayes and Sharon
Chambers are the plaintiffs and Capital Area Transit System is the defendants.)

Vill. PUBLIC COMMENT

IX. ADJOURNMENT

Individuals having questions regarding the meeting should contact Amie McNaylor,
225.389.8920, 2250 Florida Boulevard, Baton Rouge, LA 70802.

Individuals needing special accommodations during this meeting should contact
Karen Denman (225) 389-8920, Ext. 1504, 2250 Florida Boulevard, Baton Rouge, LA
70802, no later than 4:00 p.m. on the Monday immediately preceding the Tuesday
meeting.

[N |



CATS

CAPITAL ARER TRANSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters.

MEETING OF THE
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF
CAPITAL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM
AND
PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION
AUGUST 20, 2019
4:30 p.m.
BREC Administration Building
6201 Florida Boulevard
Baton Rouge, LA 70806

MINUTES
CALL TO ORDER: Mr. Mark Bellue
Mr. Bellue called the meeting to order.
ROLL CALL

Present at the meeting were Messrs. Bellue, Brandt, Breaux, and O’'Gorman
and Mss. Perkins, and Pierre. Messrs. Cohran and Lambert and Ms. Green
were absent. Also present were Mr. Bill Deville, CEO; Mr. Charles Odimgbe,
DCEO; other CATS staff; Creighton Abadie, CATS attorney; and members
of the public.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF JULY 16, 2019 MEETING
Mr. Brandt moved to approve the minutes of the July 18, 2019, meeting and

Ms. Perkins seconded the motion. Mr. Bellue invited public comment and
there was none. The motion passed unanimously with no abstentions.

PRESIDENT’'S ANNOUNCEMENTS
Mr. Bellue reviewed the public comment process.
Mr. Bellue informed those present that there was one item that would be

considered in executive session and that public comments would be taken
after the meeting resumed.



VL.

SAFETY MOMENT

Mr. Bellue noted this item had been removed from the agenda.

ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS

1. Executive and Financial Report: Mr, Bill Deville and Executive Staff
Mr. Deville provided agency updates and introduced Ms. Pearlina
Thomas. He noted that she is with the agency on an interim basis as
the interim Chief Administrative Office s working to fill the

vacancy left by Darrell Brown’s de e. She has experience in the
public sector and with policy, pro 7 implementation.

‘candidate. Training modules are
1ents and the initial effort will be

t, in Operations, there are currently
.The department lost five operators to

sted that CATS had 203,476 passenger trips in July.
reventable accidents per 100,000 miles, and 1,419.7
trips cancelled of the approximately 33,000 trips for July. The
percentage of on-time trips was 67.56%, there were 51.6 complaints
per 100,000 miles, and there were 6,130 mean miles between road
calls for the month.

Mr. Odimgbe et the board know that he is working with Operations
and Maintenance to address the various performance measures that
are trending downward. He noted that several options are being
considered to address the challenges.



Mr. Deville extended his condolences to the family of former
Governor Kathleen B. Blanco and noted that CATS worked with Dr.
Shawn Wilson of DOTD to provide shuttle service for her funeral
services.

Mr. Deville shared that CATS is planning several press events to
occur between now and October to announce the launch of the three
easily identifiable and branded electric buses into fixed-route service
on a temporary basis. The press event for the electric buses is
planned for September 16" at the CATS terminal.

CATS is also preparing an event in |
depending on the weather, for the
Transit Center.

ptember or early October,
and r_;g__ening of the Cortana

RbuQe the area around the
Sot thern University as well as

FTA provi ‘recommendations for the BRT projects and suggested
using the iminary design from the NEPA preliminary design
phase to guide other design firms under contract for Architectural
and Engineering services.

Mr. Deville presented the July financials and noted that the total
current assets as of July 31, 2019 are $26,191,474. The total assets
are $54,791,190. The total current liabilities are $7,615,145 and the
total liabilities are $13,653,181.



The operating expenses as of July 31, 2019 are $2,682,464.
The total CATS-generated operating revenues as of July 31, 2019 are
$216,758. The total non-federal subsidies are $1,467,373 and the total

federal subsidies are $367,629. The total operating subsidies are
$1,835,002.

VII. COMMITTEE REPORTS AND ANY ACTION THEREON

1. Finance and Executive: Mr. Mark Bellue .

Mr. Bellue referred the members to t utes of the committee’s
August 15™ meeting in their packe red the highlights of the
geto:the action item

Mr. Bryan Basford of MV Transportation noted that CATS On
Demand had 8,066 scheduled trips in July; of those, 650 were
cancellations and 255 were no shows, for a total of 7,416 completed

trips.

Mr. Basford noted that 49% of the trips were subscription and 51%
were demand trips. There were zero valid complaints for the month
and the on-time performance was 92.1%.



Vill. ACTION ITEMS

1.

There was discussion of the vehicle fleet and it was noted that there
are typically two to four “down” vehicles daily and MV is sending two
of its vehicles to assist with the fleet.

Ms. Perkins shared that this would be Mr. Basford’s last meeting as
he has accepted another position with MV. He will continue to be
available to CATS in the interim and will assist in training his
replacement.

Consideration of authorization to ren Rhonda Williams and to

add Charles Odimgbe as signator i behalf of CATS for all

2250 Florida'BouIevard
Baton Rouge, LA 70802

We, the undersigned, certify that we are the President and
Secretary/Clerk of the above-named State or l.ocal Government
(hereinafter referred to as the “Governing Authority”) duly created,
organized, and operating under the Constitution and Laws of the
State of Louisiana Federal Employer ID Number 72-0755868, and that
the following is a true, correct, and certified copy of a resolution



adopted at a meeting of the Governing Authority, properly called and
duly held on August 20, 2019 and that this resolution has heen
properly entered into the minutes of the Governing Authority, having
not been modified or rescinded.

B. To be resolved that:

(1) The Financial Institution named above is designated as a
depository for the funds of this Governing Authority;

(2} This resolution shall continue to ha
hotice of its recession, modificatiqn—

ffect until express written
; ncellatlon has been

ind for the effective
r the transaction of all
oney borrowed from, or
.and between this Governing Authority
' to endorse checks and orders for
vithdrawal funds on deposit with this
to any restriction(s) stated below The

orders: It shall be the responsibility of the
rity to provide written notice to this Financial
the authority of any of the agents it has so
sact business on its behalf has been terminated.
This Finar ‘Institution shall incur no liability for acting in good
faith upon the representations of said agents until such notice is
properly given;

(3) Any and all prior resolutions adopted by this Governing Authority
and certified to this Financial Institution as governing the operation
of this Governing Authority’s account(s), are in full force and effect,
unless supplemented or modified by this authorization;



(6) The Governing Authority agrees to the terms and conditions of
any account agreement, properly opened by any authorized
representative of the Governing Authority and authorizes this
Financial Institution named above, at any time, to charge the
Governing Authority for all checks, drafts, or other orders, for the
payment of moneys, drawn on the Finangcial Institution;

C. Each person named below (name and title) is authorized to exercise
the powers granted herein on all accounts opened under this
Agreement and accompanying Master Signature Card on behalf of
the Governing Authority: o

William J. “Bill” Deville, Chief Exec
Jeanette Eckert, Grants Manag

"authorization:for the CEO to settle the worker’s
aim:of John Scott. (This matter might possibly be

] reby given that this claim is a pending worker’s
im and that John Scott is the plaintiff and Capital

pending workers compensation claim. Mr. Brandt seconded the
motion. Mr. Bellue invited public comment and there was none. The
motion passed unanimously with no abstentions. At this point, the
board entered into executive session.

Following the executive session, Mr. Brandt moved that the CEQ is
authorized to settle the worker's compensation claim of John Scott
for the sum of sixty-eight thousand and 00/100 ($68,000) dollars and
Ms. Pierre seconded the motion. Mr. Bellue invited public comment



and there was none. The motion passed unanimously with no
abstentions.

PUBLIC COMMENTS

Mr. Jewell Mendes wanted to discuss personnel matters but was informed
that the board, per its bylaws, does not discuss personnel matters.

Yvette Rhines, the newly elected President of ATU Local 1548, introduced
the new Union Board officers as follows:

Yvette Rhines, President/Business Agent -
George Decunr, Vice President
Toye Hebert, Financial Secretary
Shavez Smith, Executive Board/Op.
Anthony Holmes, Executive Boar




2250 Florida Boulevard
Baton Rouge, LA 70802

PHONE: 225.389.8920

A

Bill Deville
Chief Executive Officer

Charles Odimgbe
Deputy Chief Executive
Officer

Dwana Williams
Chief Operations Officer

breats.com

CATS

CAPITAL ARER TAANSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters.

EXECUTIVE REPORT
September 2019
Bill Deville and Executive Staff

AGENCY UPDATES: Bill Deville
e Mr. John Cutrone, CPA, has been hired as the new Comptroller for the agency.
He will be in charge of the Finance Department and is leading the
management of the agency’s finances.
o Mr. Cutrone comes to CATS with 25 years’ experience at various levels
of finance and accounting, and he has worked in both the public and
private sectors.

HUMAN RESOURCES: Jim Fight
e CATS hired 27 operators who began training August 26™.
o This marks the largest training class to join the agency in five years.

OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE: Dwana Williams
e We currently have 130 active operators working. There are 140 total
operators; the remaining 10 are on FMLA and light duty.
e See attached Performance Measures.

CEO NOTES: Bill Deville

e CATS is conducting stakeholder/non-rider surveys that are administered by
the ETC Institute. This information will be used by multiple departments in the
agency in preparation for our community outreach campaign.

e The fall customer satisfaction surveys will begin the week of September 16"
with onboard surveys.

e The Microtransit Pilot Program work continues and CATS hopes to have an
RFP ready for solicitation by September, 2019, whereby two North Baton
Rouge zones will be merged for a service area in North Baton Rouge that
includes the Airport, Southern University, and the city of Baker; we will have a
timeline of this pilot program for the board at the September board meeting.

e CATS board president and several committee chairs were able to meet with
Congressman Garret Graves on August 29" to discuss the BRT project as well
as other CATS initiatives. The meeting was brief but well received, and the
Congressman and board members took advantage of the photo opportunity
alongside and inside the newly wrapped BYD electric bus.

PLANNING AND PROGRAM DEVELOPIMENT:
e Planning staff has been riding several routes — numbers 14, 15, 18, 22, 46, 47,
58, 59, and 80 — in order to adjust schedules and time points for the upcoming
October service adjustment. Proactive adjustments to the 46 route were
made to service Our Lady of the Lake Children’s Hospital when it opens in
October.



2250 Florida Boulevard
Baton Rouge, LA 70802

PHONE: 225.389.8920

gl

hrcats.com

CHTS

CAPITAL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters.

e Planning has assisted with identifying and evaluating administrative office
facilities.

FACILITIES PLANNING: Bill Deville
North Baton Rouge Transit Center:
e Legal counsel indicated that LSU and the Division of Administration have
completed the process of notifying the previous owner(s) of the intent to sell
the property. The title search is underway and closing is anticipated shortly.

East Baton Rouge Transit Center — Cortana-Walmart Transit Center:
e Construction is continues at the site and all transit furnishings including
benches, bike racks, light fixtures, and trash bins are being installed.
e Construction is expected to be completed no later than October, with revenue
service starting immediately.

BUS RAPID TRANSIT:
Plank Road BRT, Phase One:

e The Plank BRT Phase One project’s final engineering is on hold until the
completion of the NEPA process and receiving environmental approval for the
entire Plank Road BRT and Plank-Nicholson BRT projects. HNTB is the
consultant on record and slated to complete the environmental and NEPA
process.

Plank-Nicholson BRT, Phase Two:

e The City-Parish has received a signed contract and is now in the City-Parish
execution process. The contract has been signed by the Director of
Transportation and Drainage and forwarded to the Purchasing Department; it
is now under legal review by the Parish Attorney. An advanced Notice to
Proceed was issued last week and HNTB is scheduling a kickoff meeting this
week.

e An environmental workshop is tentatively scheduled for October.

ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE FACILITIES: Bill Deville

e Management has identified three options that would address the
administrative office requirements and hopes to complete choice negotiations
this week.

o We will seek to get board approval as soon as possible under these
urgent conditions.

e Staff is visiting and evaluating each location, their facilities and leasing options
to determine their suitability and cost effectiveness.

e Facilities that have been identified are adequate in size to fully accommodate
all administrative functions and personnel from 5700.



2250 Florida Boulevard
Baton Rouge, LA 70802

PHONE: 225.389.8920

Rt

brcats.com

CATS

CAPITAL ARER TRANSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters.

Management is looking to execute a 12- to 36 month lease with options
immediately within the confines of board governance guidelines as this is an
urgent matter.

Finance: Mr. John Cutrone

See attached financial report.



955'vee

9/¥'€0¢

T¥0‘T0¢C

LZ9'ETT

L¥9'T0T

S8Y'ETT

€91'T2¢

£Sv'12T

610C ™

LT9'€0T

€T0'9TT

T19'sve

99€'81C

T6T°LIT

[96°S1T

v9r'11Z

€99°cze

T¥Z'81¢

vZETEL

160°61¢

755'91¢

8T0C W

Bl

"AON

g=le]

1dag

‘Bny

Ainr

aunr

Aen

[udy

1Bl

"qa4

‘uer

diysiapy

000°0S

000001

000°0ST

000°00Z

000°0S2

000°00€

131845 LISH4HI H3dH L

ol4]




sdois snq waisAs |p101 3yl Jo %8/ 9 1uasaidal yaym squlodalil Ppainpayas 10 PaJNspawW sy aupwidofiad aw[-uQ 310N
SDUBLIIOLIDd BWIl-UQ %08 1281e]

WILLS

%95°L9

%Lt 99

%16°€9

%6¥'¥9

%89°09

%9C°L9

%16°L9

6T0C =

%099

%899

%E"99

%6°L9

%C L9

%069

%< 89

%8°L9

%TL9

%98°59

%8€'99

%1L99

810Z m

28d

*AON

1P0

-1dag

gny

Ang

aunr

Aey

[udy

yaaep

‘qed

‘uer

JUBWLIOLIRd dWI]-UQ

%00°0

%00°0T
%00°0¢
%00°0€
%00°0%
%0005
%00°09
%00°0L
%00°08
%00°06

%00°00T

WBLSAS 1ISNHHL H3td THLHHD

a16d




SL9VL | 6TV'T | GL'688 | ST86Y | S¥LZ8 | £TIS | SE00Z | 9'ELI sdiil sng pa||soued 6107
S8€ ¥'6EE 9zZ¢ 91¢ ¥9¢ 61 £6¢ T0¢C €6 99 £0re S'6¢cC sdi] sng paj|saued 8102
0.8 | 0686 | 0686 0€'66 0Z’66 | OF66 | OT'66 | OF'66 | 0L'66 | 0866 0g'66 | 0£'66 FRAEIEH0

sdi] sng pajnpayds jo % gT0Z m
08°L6 €4°56 0E/L6 | 0986 | 0546 | 0986 0g'66 | OF'66 pefEIRtg
sdiL sng Pa|NPaYds 4o % 6107 W
23 ‘ANON 120 1dag Bny Alnr aunr Aen ady enl ‘ge4 uer
000
00°0T
00°'0¢ )
0]
-
(=]
00°0€ L
-+
O
aq
000t [
o
=
00°0s .II._
o
(V]
0009 2
)
=
]
00°0L =3
o
0008
00°06
00001

6102-810¢ pairesadQ sdiil %

W3L5AS LISHHHL H3HH LD

ol6d




sSuipieog 000°00T 42d syulejdwo) Jawoisn) Oz eyl ssa| 3984e] ,

rer

9°1s

€SP

9've

A4

T'LS

LTE

9'9¢€

6T0C ™

LTy

A4

€8¢

9'9¢

8'0€

T've

8'LE

T'EE

6°CC

6°ST

L'€T

6'1€

8T0C m

28d

*AON

‘PO

das

*Sny

AIng

aunr

Aep

dy

Yaie

‘qa4

‘uer

ot

o¢

0€

or

0s

s3uipJeog 000°00T J2d siuiejdwor Jawolsn)

09

UBISAS 1SN L 3t Tl

al6d




S3|IAl 00000T 42d SIUBPIIIY 3|qeIUdAS.d §°Z 198Iel,

S3|IIN 000°00T 42d SIUBPIIDY 3|qeIUBABIG

8'1 T'1 €L'0 0T 0¢ L1 8's i 6T0Z =
6'T € €1 81 91 L1 L1 91 L0 €T T1 S'€ 810¢m
*22g *NON 10 -3das “Sny Anrp aunf Aey judy yaie ‘qed ‘uer .
T
[4
€
4
S
9
L

LLIBISAS ISNHL 3 Rl

5143




8'¢8E'y | TOET9 | S¥Iv'6 | LET'L €852 STV Z6L'T ZZ6'E  |S]|eD peOoY "199 SO|IIN UBBIN 6T0T =
8LE'Y TvE'S TL6'S L8y €ES'S 8799 89/9 6521 19 SCT'6 | 8IB'0T | TIS'Y |[SleD peoy 199 S9N UBSIA 8TO0Z m
3¢ ‘AON 190 1das ‘8ny Anr aunfp Aeln udy IelAl ‘ge4

‘uer

s||ed peoy uaamiag S3|IAl Ues Al

000C
000'%
0009
0008
000°0T

000°¢tT

WSLSAS LISNHH. B3 L]

o18d




Capital Area Transit System

Balance Sheet
August, 2019

8/31/2019 8/31/2018
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents 3,732,304 2,836,750
Accounts Receivable 559,756 316,173
Property Tax Receivable 17,300,802 17,291,859
Due from Governments 3,081,675 954,028
Notes Receivable 0 0
Interest and Dividends Receivable 0 0
Inventory 83,013 655,080
Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets 7,423 223,405
Total Current Assets: 24,764,973 22,277,294
Restricted Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents 389,310 694,618
Total Restricted Assets: 389,310 694,618
Investments ) 0
Neot Pension Asset, Long-Term 1,466,268 490,522
Equipment, Net 27,202,963 20,421,136
Total Assets 53,823,513 | 43,883,570
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 4,134,111 501,103
Accrued Payroll and Tax Edabilities 244,768 (517,902)
Acerued Interest (Bus Tease) (0) {0)
Note Pavable 0 0
Accrued Compensated Absences 424,440 142,274
Claims Payable and Related Liabilities 855,488 883,036
Capital Lease Payable 220,482 (328,137)
Deferred Revenue (Granis/Prop Tax) (0) 5,232,783
Other Current Liabilities 0 0
Total Current Liabilities 5,879,288 5,913,178
Long-Term Liabilities
Note Payable, Less Current Portion 0 0
Accrued Compensated Abcenses, Less Current Portion 0 266,320
Capital Lease Payable, Less Current Portion 2,788,983 3,938,590
Estimated Liabilities 3,249,053 1,192,231
Total Long-Term Liabilities 6,038,036 5,397,141
Total Liabilities 11,917,324 | 11,310,319
Net Assets: .
Investments in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 24,193,498 16,810,683
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents
Unrestricted 17,712,692 15,762,568
Total Net Assets: 41,906,189 32,573,251
Total Liabilitics And Net Assets 53,823,513 43,883,570




Capital Area Transit System

Statement of Operating Budget vs. Actual

For the Period Ended August, 2019

Page 1

Current Month Year to Date
2019 Approved
Budget Actual Var. Amount Budget Actual Var. Amount Arnual Budget
Operating Expenses
Labor $907,132 $815,761 $91,371 $7.257,056 | $6,504,459 $752,597 $10,385,584
Fringe Benefits $540,182 $512,426 $27,756 $4,321,453 $4,423,828 {$102,375) $6,482,179
Total Labor and Fringe Benefits $1,447,314 $1,328,187 $119,127 $11,578,508 | 510,928,287 $650,222 $17,367,763
Casualty and Liability £140,540 $153,501 ($12,561) $1,124,319 $1,167,430 (543,111) $1,686,478
Services $149,226 $225,334 ($76,109) $1,193,806 $1,591,502 {$397,696) $1,790,709
Purchased Transportation $187,500 $201,237 ($13,737) $1,500,000 $1,593,477 (593,477) $2,250,000
Materials & Supplies $227,770 $343,189 15219 | 1822159 | $2.831872 |  ($1,009,714) $2,733,238
Utilities $22,667 $16,179 $6,488 $181,333 $118,419 $62.914 $272,000
Miscellaneous Expenses $61,650 $67,535 ($5,885) $493,199 $658,827 {$165,628) $739,799
Leages and Rentals $13,333 $0 $13,333 $106,667 $45,646 $61,020 $160,000
Total Operating Expenscs $2,249,999 $2,335,162 (585,163) $17,999.991 | $18,935,461 (8935,46%) $26,999,987
Operating Revenues
Passenger Paid Farcs $141,803 $159,584 $17,782 $1,134,420 $1,151,132 $16,712 $1,701,630
Special Transit Fares (Contract) $25,943 $12,655 ($13,289) $207,546 $152,248 ($55,299) $311,319
ADA/Paratransit Revenue $7,667 58,784 $1,118 $61,333 $58,577 (32,757 $92,000
Advertising Revenue $61,054 $40,000 ($20,154) $488,431 $405,371 ($83,060) §732,647
Interest Income $13,515 $7,127 ($6,388) $108,122 $132,453 $24,331 $162,183
Other Agency Revenue $14,547 $330 ($14,617) $119,577 $125,653 $10,076 $179,366
Total Operating Revenues $264,929 $229,381 (835,548) $2,119,430 $2,029,434 ($89,996) $3,179,145
Operating Shortfall/Subsidy Required | (31,985,070)] (82,105,781  (s120,711)] [ (515,880,561)| (516906027 (51,025.466)  (523,820,842)|
Faderal, State & Local Subsidies)
Non Federal Revenue
Heotel/Motel Tax $104,235 $0 ($104,235) $833,882 $918,200 $84.318 $1,250,823
Parish Transportation Fund $45,833 $137,500 $91,667 $366,667 $412,500 $45,833 $550,000
Property Tax Revenue $1,467,373 $1.467,373 $0 $11,738,980 | $11,738,980 $0 $17,608,470
Total Non Federal Subsidies $1,617,441 $1,604,873 {$12,569) $12,939,528 | $13,069,680 $130,152 $19,409,293
Federal Operating Subsidies
FTA - Preventive Maintenance $348.879 $730,929.08 $382,050 $2,791,033 $6,081,033 $3,290,000 $4,186,549
FTA - Planning $18,750 $104,900 $86,150 $150,000 $104,900 ($45,100) $225,000
Total Federal Subsidics $367,629 $835,829 $468,200 $2,941,033 $6,185,933 $3,244,900 54,411,549
Total Operating Subsidies $1,985,070 $2,4490,702 $455,631 $15,880,561 | 519,255,613 $3,375,052 $23,820,842
Net Operations Balance +/- 50 $334,920 | | §0 | $2,349,586 so |




CHTS

CAPITAL RREA TRANSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters.

MEETING OF THE
TECHNICAL, POLICIES, AND
PRACTICES COMMITTEE
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
CAPITAL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM AND
PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION COMMISSIONS
SEPTEMBER 5, 2019
BREC Administration Office
Room 1801
6201 Florida Boulevard, Baton Rouge, LA

MINUTES
The Technical, Policies, and Practices Committee met on Thursday, September 5, 2019,
at 10:30 a.m. Present at the meeting were members Peter Breaux, Laurence Lambert,
and Antoinette Pierre. Also present were Bill Deville and members of CATS staff.

. Recommend approval of CATS ADA Paratransit Manual

Ms. Pearlina Thomas noted that the manual has been accepted by the FTA for its
triennial review of the agency. The final step in the FTA approval is to have the
CATS Board of Commissioners ratify the manual.

It was noted by Ms. Thomas that the process allowed for further validation that
the agency undertake a restructure and reorganization.

It was noted that Ms. Eckert helped revise the manual for compliance.

There were questions concerning the revisions that were made to the manual.
This information was not readily available. The Committee members requested
that an executive summary be created and distributed to board members prior to
approval.

There was discussion regarding the compilation and housing of all the CATS
policies and manuals that have been approved and are implemented at the staff
level. It was requested that a comprehensive master manual be created by the
staff.

There was a request to have the staff share a summary of the FTA triennial
findings.



Dr. Breaux moved that the CATS ADA Paratransit Manual with the requested
executive summary be sent to the F&E Committee to recommend approval by
the full board and Mr. Lambert seconded the motion. Dr. Breaux invited public
comment and there was none. The motion carried unanimously with no

abstentions.

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned.



CAHTS

CAPITAL RREA TRANSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters.

MEETING OF THE
504/COMMUNITY RELATIONS COMMITTEE
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
CAPITAL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM AND
PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION COMMISSIONS
SEPTEMBER 11, 2019
Room 1809
6201 Florida Boulevard, Baton Rouge, LA

MINUTES
The 504/Community Relations Committee met on Wednesday, September 11, 2019, at
10:30 a.m. Present at the meeting were Linda Perkins, Antoinette Pierre, Bill Deville,
Charles Odimgbe, Pearlina Thomas, Dwana Williams, Karen Denman, members of
CATS staff, and Bryan Basford and Walter “Lenny” Cooksey of MV Transportation.

l. Introduction
Ms. Perkins welcomed those assembled and thanked them for coming.

Il MV Transportation Report -
Mr. Basford introduced the new General Manager for MV Transportation’s CATS
On Demand service, Walter “Lenny” Cooksey. It was noted Mr. Cooksey comes
to CATS from Jacksonville Transit Authority (JTA) in Jacksonville, Florida.
Mr. Basford of MV Transportation noted that CATS On Demand had 9,118
scheduled trips in August. Of the scheduled trips, 8,613 were completed; 505

were cancellations and 233 were no-shows.

Mr. Basford noted that 48% of the trips were subscription and 52% were demand
trips.

Mr. Basford shared that there were six valid complaints for the month.
Mr. Basford noted that the on-time performance for the month was 87%.
It was noted that there were three road calls for the month.

There was discussion of the vehicle replacement schedule and Ms. Denman
indicated that staff would be determining funding availability.



V.

[t was noted that the air conditioner issues are prevalent, and Mr. Basford
suggested there be a mid-summer maintenance c_ampaign to focus on ACs.

The committee was informed that MV has been bringing in their own vehicles at
no cost to CATS.

Certifications — Karen Denman

Ms. Denman shared the certification numbers for August for CATS On Demand.
There were 49 applications mailed in August; this does not account for the
applications received via other methods. Of those, two were certified, none were
temporary certifications and no one was deemed ineligible during the month.
There were two recertifications for the month.

Mr. Deville noted that recertifications need to begin again and there needs to be
a campaign to expedite the process. There was discussion concerning the
recertification process and the manpower availability for the required need.

Customer service — Angella Wynn and Dwana Williams

Ms. Wynn noted there were 111 total complaints received in August. There were
38 that required corrective action and there were four commendations for the
month.

Ms. Wynn shared there were 12 complaints for being passed up, zero for
courtesy, and 26 for performance.

There was considerable discussion of the reason for the continued “pass up”
complaints and it was reiterated that this is unacceptable. There was dialogue
regarding the action taken when an operator commits a “pass up” with a
customer.

There was discussion of the need for more timely distribution of complaints to
those who need to know about them, and Mr. Odimgbe indicated that this policy
could be implemented quickly.

Ms. Williams shared that there are currently 130 active operators and there are
an additional 25 in training.

It was noted that staff would be developing a report to capture the number of
cadets with and without a Commercial Driver’s License (CDL) as well as an
estimated completion percentage. Ms. Pierre shared that she was impressed
with the new class of cadets.

The committee was notified that there is a possibility of partnering with the East
Baton Rouge School System for an operator campaign. Mr. Deville shared that
there may be a potential to partner with BRCC for operators.



Ms. Wynn noted that she is looking into having the customer service
representatives shadow another customer service department, perhaps in
transit and perhaps someone in the private sector. Ms. Pierre shared that there

is an online certification program for customer service.

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned.



puewag % m uondudsqns % m S'T [E0D) e H ] N

T Rt SN <4 3 BN S S S « S T S T
& & & & & T & F & &4
...||| = = ~Trae o gc
%0T
%07
%0E
%0%
%05
%09 9T 29'1T . v9'T y .
. LT . . . SL'T <
wos 81 €31 67 €8T 8T 9T 58T
%08 e
%06
ol Avanonpoud (Hdd) 1noH 13d si1a8uassed
%BE [E0D s 38RIUDUBH B -U () o
6T-8ny 6T-INr GT-unr 6T-AeIN BT-dy 61N 6T-034 BT-uef 81-23Q ST-AON 8T-120 gr-dag gT-8ny
; %878
'8
%0°L 6’98 %E L8 %69
. - o =
%1T'C6 %I°C6 %ET16
. %9°€6
%L't6e %9'V6
%0°86 %0°86

98ej1ua249d dwil-uQ

%0'sL

%008

%058

%0°06

%056

%0°00T



£€2
S0S
£198
8116
6T-3ny

6T-8ny

65¢
8€9
899

TEZL
6T-INT

6T-Inr

(0] 74
0¢9
il
T9ER
6T-unf

gL-unr

L12
19
160L
SELL
6T-Aeiy

6T-AeIN

MOYS ON m
44 01€
149 859
€799 16SL
vIEL 678

6T-1dy  GT-JEA
6T-4dv 6T-BIN

SUOIB[|22URD) IRGINY =

T8¢
285
€904
9Z6L
6T-q=4
61-9°4

80€
0g9
L£19
SL9L
6T-uer

T-uef

sdu ) psie|dwo) m

99¢
¢Ls
L1789
S8LL
81-2°d

81-2=d

sduj panpayos m

6LV
ST9
Z9SL
9598
8T-AON

8T-ACN

S0¢€
LZ9
¥SL9
989L
8T-120

81-120

€6¢
£€9
6849
STLL
g1-das

g1-dag

18%3
S8p
19¢8
L816
81-3ny

|T-9ny

Moys onN E
SUOl}e||22UB) JAqWINN ™
sdii] palsjdwo) m

sdul pajnpayas m

000T

000¢

000E

000t

0005

0009

000£

0008

0006

8116

0000T



6T-8ny

T9€8

6T-Inr

0L0L

4

T

[4"

squiejdwo)

6T-unr

6T-ABIN

BT-4dy

Tr8

€1

€T

SAIBYI[9aYM [BIO] =

6T-1EIN

€T

I

6T-9=4

siopry [e3oL m

6T-uer

81-29d

0t

IT

SII€D Peoy #

BT-NON

81-120

o6¥8

g1-das

LTEL

81-8ny

15¢6

T

0oot

000¢

000€

000%

0005

0009

000L

ooos

0006

0000T



2250 Florida Boulevard
Baton Rouge, LA 70802

PHONE: 225.389.8920

s

Amie McNaylor
Communications Director
amcnaylor@brcats.com

hrcats.com

CATS

CAPITAL ARER TRANSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters.

CATS BOARD APPROVAL REQUEST:
P.O. #2018062

Date: September 12, 2019

Department requesting approval: Communications

Project Manager: Alex Sevier

Project/Contract: Rockit Science Agency, Inc. Strategic Creative Consulting
Contract

Project/Contract Date(s): October 1, 2019 through September 30, 2020

Renewal options (Yes/No): Yes

If yes, what year/option: first renewal
Budgeted project (Yes/No): Yes
Grant(s) Funded (Yes/No): Partial

Project/Contract Summary: This is the first renewal option for this contract.
The original terms are a one year contract with up to four, one year renewals.

Rockit Science works with the Communications Department for graphic design
services, market strategy, photography, videography, and media planning.

In addition to maintaining the brand awareness that has been developed over
the last several years, CATS will be working with Rockit on a focused Education
Qutreach Campaign that will span the course of the year. There will also be
targeted internal campaigns throughout the year to ensure the all CATS
employees are kept aware of all the initiatives the agency is working.

The first vear of the contract had a not to exceed amount of $125,000 and
through the first eleven months, we have spent approximately $100,000.

The proposed budget for the next twelve months is a not to exceed amount of
$160,000. The increased amount will primarily be allocated to the internal
campaigns and the Education Qutreach.

P.O. #2018062



2250 Florida Boulevard CI I I S

Baton Rﬂuge LA 70802 CAPITAL ARER TRANSIT SYSTEM

PHONE: 225.389.8920

The first year of the partnership has been very productive and beneficial, and
the Communications Department recommends the continuation of the

W partnership with Rockit Science.
Project/Contract Amount: Not to exceed $160,000

Project Manager approval

Supervisor approval

Procurement approval

CEO approval

hrcats.com

P.O. #2018062



Sample motion for Rockit Science

I hereby move that the CEQ is authorized to renew the strategic creative partner contract with Rockit
Science for a period of one year and an amount not to exceed $160,000.



2250 Florida Boulevard
Baton Rouge, LA 70802

PHONE: 225.389.8920

—

Micah Anthony
Director of Vehicle
Technology
manthony@brcats.com

brecats.com

CATS

CAPITAL ARERA TRANSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters.

CATS BOARD APPROVAL REQUEST:
P.O. #2018165

Date: September 12, 2019

Department requesting approval: Vehicle Technology

Project Manager: Micah Anthony

Project/Contract: RouteMatch AVL, AVA, and APC System Annual Technical
Support, Maintenance, and Warranty contract

Project/Contract Date(s): August 1, 2019 through July 31, 2020

Renewal options (Yes/No): No

If yes, what year/option: N/A
Budgeted project (Yes/No): Yes
Grant(s) Funded (Yes/No):

Project/Contract Summary: This contract supports the RouteMatch software
and technology utilized on CATS vehicles. The annual cost for the above

referenced contract has been negotiated for a considerable discount for the

2019-2020 period. CATS successfully secured the discount with RouteMatch

due to software and hardware deficiencies, as well as milestone shortcomings.

We are requesting the CATS Board of Commissioners to approve the reduced

amount of $165,052 for a period of one year.

Project/Contract Amount: $165,052

Project Manager approval

Supervisor approval

P.O. #2018165



2250 Florida Boulevard
Baton Rouge, LA 70802

PHONE: 225.389.8920

S

hrcats.com

CATS

CAPITAL ARER TRANSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters.

Procurement approval

CEO approval

P.O. #2018165



Sample motion for RouteMatch

| hereby move that the CEO is authorized to enter into a contract with RouteMatch for annual technical
support, warranty, and technical for a period of one year and an amount of $165,052.



Sample motion for Whitney/Hancock Bank signatories

| hereby move that the CEO is authorized to remove Jeanette Eckert as a signatory and add John Cutrone
as a signatory for all Whitney/Hancock Bank accounts and that the CEQ is authorized to execute all
documents required by Whitney/Hancock Bank to effectuate these changes.



Sample motion for ADA Paratransit Manual

| hereby move that the CATS ADA Paratransit Manual be adopted.




Bon Carie Technology
Center (FL Blvd)

Renaissance Park (Laure| blk fom FL)

350 N Dormoor Ave (Blk from FL)

5700 Florida Bhd

Location: Distance from
CATS

Approximately 3.2 miles

Approximately 0.5 miles

Approximately 2.3 miles

Approximately 2.0miles

Costs: Gross lease $17.00 per sq. ft. $12.00 per sq. ft. $8.50 per sq. ft $12,36 per sq. ft
Lease Area 7,500 sq. f. 8,700 sq. . (plus) 10,875 5. f 8,472 sqft
5700 Florida Blvd.

Per Per
Description | Month | Annualized Per SF | SF/Month Total SF Per Year
Year 1: $10,843.68 $12.36 $1.03 | 10,555.00 $130,124.16
Year 2: $10,843.68 $12.36 $1.03 | 10,555.00 $130,124.16
Year 3: $10,843.68 $12.36 $1.03 | 10,555.00 $130,124.16
Total 10,555.00 | $390,372.48

350 N. Donmoor Ave.

Per Per
Description | Month | Annualized Per SF| SF/Month | Total SF | Per Year
Year 1: $7,476.56 $8.25 $0.69 | 10,875.00 $89,718.72
Year 2: $7,703.13 $8.50 $0.71 | 10,875.00 $92,437.56
Year 3: $7,929.69 S8.75 $0.73 | 10,875.00 $95,156.28
Total $277,312.56




___ e _FTA aware and indicated potential relief,_not certainyet; _._____ _

Office furniture needed; not certain yet of quantity/cost {if not molded, trying to determine how
to salvage from 5™ and 9" floors with no power/no elevators)

All technology equipment and telephones have been removed from5700 — in climate storage;
Files to be removed next (targeting this week depending on lease options);

Staff seeking to see if any damages can be covered by Mid Tower or our own insurance;
IT says it could take up to 30 days to re-install technology and telephone wired and wireless
systems




Sample motion for office space

I hereby move that the CEO is authorized to enter into a three year lease with the owner of the property
located at 350 North Donmoor Avenue at a cost not to exceed $277,312.56 and with such other terms
and conditions as the CEO deems appropriate.



SAMPLE MOTION TO AUTHORIZE THE CEO TO SETTLE
THE CLAIMS OF LIONEL HAYES AND SHARON CHAMBERS

| hereby move that the CEQ is authorized to settle the claims of Lionel Hayes
for the sum of THIRTY-ONE THOUSAND and 00/100 ($31,000.00) DOLLARS plus court
costs and the claims of Sharon Chambers for the sum of EIGHTEEN THOUSAND FIVE
HUNDRED and 00/100 ($18,500.00) DOLLARS plus court costs each under the terms
and conditions of the settlement and judgment payment policy adopted by the Board on
July 20, 2004 as amended.




S30IAIaS
‘suondo |emaual Jeak-auo Jpny [eulalxg
2 uim ‘0zoz ybnoiy gLog ul Bulpus siesp Jepusie) Jod “Ainp 000°L5LS = uojsuad
"81L/0€/0L uo pausdo 44y pIeog [N} 0} 8AOW O} panoidde 8L/LE/ZL ur 00561 L$ (8L0Z 3AD 2 S1VD
aaniwwod 394 — 8L/8/LL Pancidde pieog - gL/EL/LL Buipue joe)jU0D Bupsixe JO 8sealou| S1VD oy 1oeIuoD Fisloii
‘000°LSL$ JO [BJO} M3U o) QOG'LES Ieniul O} 8L0Z JAD Ue aoe|dal 0} SIOIAIBS anoldde 005°6L1$ 9[InI9)I8N B S20IMBS 8 S
S1vD 10} 00S'6LL$ leuonippe paacidde pieog — 6L/9L/L 1PNy [eulalx3 10) d4Y 0} pieog L¢0¢ 280 6L0Z uer PPY) ajemyisiisod d4y yIpny
Slieyy diod g ‘1| Juswaindold
‘suopeladp ‘Buisiianpy 9 Bunasuep ‘poddng
UlWPY [BJRUBS) ‘BOUBUI{ SB UONS ‘SlYD o} Sa0IAIaS
8pnjoul 0} SBOINIBS ‘GL/EL/Z BNSgeM S1yD uo pajsod
puE paNQUISIP DAY — 61/8/ "SBDIAISS |[BI-UO TRy UOU 10}
ddd enssial 0} S1VD "PaIIBIUED SI DY — 6LIPLIE '6L/9L/S
uo anp sjesodold ‘wdg 1e 61// 1/ U0 p|ay @q 0} 20UsIajuod 600-S20IMIRGIED
lesodoud-a1d "S80IMISS [[BD-UO 40§ PEMOIOS d4Y — 61/8Z/E e 5
‘pausdo Apignd siesodoid - 61/9L/S ‘siavoed jno puey 61L0z/82/E fHd
9 $5300.d SSNOSIP 0} DId UIM 1AW JUSLUBINIOIE - GL/Z/L | UO SIOIAIBS ||BD-UD TRy gg.L1s09 dd¥ SIIAIBS
‘Juow siy] suonenjens 'salods JWAnNs 0} O3d — 6L/L/8 | -UOU IO} 44N panssi S1vD agl agl agL xoiddy adlL Buninsuod lIeD-UQ
‘0}@ 'saulyoew
1901 pue sysop| ‘spiejjog Aejes ‘Bunybl ‘sepoejdesal
yseJq) ‘'syoes ayiq ‘senioe) Jebusssed pasojpus ‘abunoj
sJonup ‘saimonns Adoueo ‘sAeq Bupuped sng ainjes) L0EL# Hd
0] "2UO S| JaJuaD) JISUBI] HEN SJoym ‘S1sjuad Jajsuel 13)U87D Ysuel| aglL ssamag A2 HIsuBllL ¥EN
snq Jolew  Jo seuss e Jo juswdojsnrap ay) sxyepspun 0} | abnoy ucieg YUON ay) Joj 150D uBisag SaJIAaG
w4 ‘uswebeuepy s1vD Jod awy siy} Je pjoy up —6L/LIy | seomsg ubiseq 1) DY agL ' ag.lL ag.l xoiddy agli iy ubiseg 33V
‘suoneoyvads [ea1uysa) ay) Bulssw ul Jeppigq 8Aisuodsal 500
1samo| ay) mc_c_c._._m“wu ul Spig UuopBoNsSuUod a3yl uyum -ubisagsaniuawy
S1VD IsIsse os|e |m jueynsuoo ubBisaq 1@ ‘sedeaspuen -61.0Z DY
'SHSOIY ‘sie)ByS Spnidul IIM BL/LL/F U0 WepQ:plL 1B rE6# Hd
onp sjesodoid ‘papoljos Sem DY — 6L/8Z/ "000°08L$ 10) Aey ur premy dinb3 pajerey 3
Bupeew pleog §L0Z SUNP 8} 1B PIEME UB PUSLULLODA] PUB swdinbg pajeey 1oEQUON 000'08L$ | MMIANWAY | | SOHNSUVISHEL
slesodosd pejenjens D34 pue ‘usWwaindold Ag panledal pue sauswWy Isuel| Joj ponciddy 1509 adeospuen ubisaq S3VINIRS
alam sjesodoid — GL/LLp PaAcsdde pieog - 6L/SL/S sa01n8S ubisaq Jo) DAY pleog agal agl xouddy yoiay u..m< :m_wwn_ JBY
"g1/62/8 :2)eq Buusdo |esodoud a)isgam G//#¥d "paId
S1vyD uo pajsod ‘1Sl JOpuBA 0} JUSS UONEOLNOU pue 2|4 ® PY Yue|d
pesiueApe s| D44 MaN — gL/z/g ‘Bulobuo jys suonenjea — SslI[I0B) JISUB)) Mau (ow gL) (ow gl) suonels 1ug
81/01/0L "GM'S WOk SG' G ZZES JO JUNOWE B} Ul Jayo [BUY | 8pnjul o} ‘PAId Bl B PY 8LIELLL aal aglL 000'€25% — il
PaAR2al S1VD — 8L/SZ/0L ‘Pleog ||n) 0} arow o} parcidde | MUB|d UO SUOHEIS | ¥Mg Jo) panoiddy :81eq :a1eq 180D o1 ubisaq 3
Sspwwo) 394 — 81/8/LL Parcidde pieog - gl/gl/LL | S8dIneS uBisaq o) DAY pieog pejewns3 | pejewnsy xouddy ‘dnoig grg I8Y uBiseq 38V
02/62/2 iy} femausd
9L/LL/8 JoBIUOD Bunjeas (stwiefo dwion) O M % qer] sng
Jo |emaual panoidde pleog S1vD — 9L/0E/8 'PIZIBUL | SJIYIOAN pue Aupger] 195l oz/ezre el Ak mEoo JMJOM
[emMaual jJoBIUOD — 9L/G/6 ‘[BMSUSI YUOW g B aq ‘suonebisanu) ‘SIS 02/62/2 M 6L/LE WIEtS Jeisn(py » Aljqer]
[11m 10B13U0D Sy “1aBeuely 198l0id Jod — ZL/LZ/L ‘paAcidde wieln) J0jsnipyy Joj ybnoyy poj=d dnoug 19914 sng
384 — LL/0L/8 - panoiddy pieog — /L/GL/g "paAcidde | joesuoo seaf g jeubLo) |emauay [emsusl 10 | Juewabeuepy
; / sajey ApnoH suiie|d
3®d - 8L/SL/Z "Panoidde pieog - g1/0Z/z B3k U0 Jo) | 61/82/Z — SL/L/E 4O pouad panoiddy : 6L/L/E palepdn swiey dd §
panss| JORAUOD MEN — 8L/L/E ‘Panosdde pieog — 6L/SL/L | [emauas paaciddy pieog pieog oz/eziz | :lemeusy 0} 13j9y umoig 20103 Jasnlpy
v
SJUBLILIOY | SBION papiAold paAoiddy ajeq ajeq Juy awep adA ] uonduosag
jonpold /S92IAIRS pieog pug yels 1opuap 1juo9n 92IAI3S

Syjuow ¢ 03 | ulyyIm uoipy pieog Buipuad sjoaloid = anig

_ mou [eaosddy pieog spaau j Wa)| UOIIOY = MOJIPA

| 610z ‘.1 Joquiaydeg

pieog S1vI 10} m_.__”—m_l_ juswiaindoid S1VID




'suB|d JuaLUsanl|
Juaweaoidwi jeyden

pue 21621e18 S1VD Ul pauysp
se saAna2lqo pue s|ecb
‘suoljepuawwesal Juawa|duwi

O} JEIS BAINDIBXS pUE juswabeuep
IM }JOM pUE B]EpIpuEd
039 cww_p_v__m:c M E_EW%_..._WUN\, ._O__.._@W w._.<0
030 Aindag S1vD Buly yum ZSL6L0Z 0} 10SIAPY
1SISSE ‘Sa)Inp 23uBuuIBW
pue m::EMuo Kep-o}-Aep O&c%ﬂﬁoo mco_um._mwo_o
10 EmEmmm:m:_; pue bisiano éif _‘.N.:m avN) 511 d01uag g
‘SOUISNPUL 8BY MON. | (5 mou Jo wawsdormuop i | PaAOIGGE sowsnpul | saweg | 032 Aindeq
Yim J0BJJUOD MBU sIY) paroidde pieog — 6L/LZ/S SLVD IsISse 0] JueynsuoD pleog 0Z/61/9 6L/0L/9 000°05$ aby meN 1nsuo) Bunoy
d
‘slaquiaw D3Id ayy £q
pejosjes se paysu] 913 Bulpuswwossl 03D S1VD 0 0z1'89% [EMBUSI BUO Y)IM
19)}8| pJeme 1o} UONEpUSWIWOD8a] 8y} pajedald Juswainoold “Ja)e| maual 0] | GLZ'ZES ppe |jemaual 61/0E/F St @1ep pug
SLIELY ‘8L0OC .w_‘ __._n__( uo JoBlju0D _mr Um_)nzn_n.m uoljepuswwodal O30 0} pue joenuod 10BNJUOD LEA_MWWQNC@ m>w>n_=w
pieog S1VD "SpPUN) 810W 10} SYSE} [BUCHIPPE UIIM |EMaUS] 1818y "S/E'€0L$ JO 1500 [emauss Jeak sug olclz'zeg uonoejsnes
anoudde pue melaal O} 394 GL/LLAP "SHSEl pappe o) |10} pamaual e Je Jeak paAoidde PPY) 208G » 5
junouie |euolipPE/M [emaual parosdde pieog — 6L/9LIY e 801m} sAenuns pieog pieog 0Z/0E/¥ 6L/1/S cig'eoLs | @INMSUI 91T | ynsuop Jsuwolsny
‘1918
SinJ20 1G8' /TS
malnay JBisiaaQ 10y IBASLOIYM MBINSY
9DUB)SISSY MAINEY-1S0d 1928102 ‘MBIAS] WbBisianQ
‘Hoddng uoioy BARDa1I0D 0Od 10enuo) bisianc anisuayaldwon
‘leaoidde ©FD 1o} ployYsaIY) BU) UM :S¥SE} 8pnjoul 0} 6L0Z USRI dwoo v 4 Awwﬁwu V14 6L0ZAd)
SEM UDIUM '/G8'ZF$ J0) 61/G/Z UO PajNdaxa Sem JORHUOD [Bluusl V1 4 Bulwoodn 6L/12/S 6L0ZAd o} 261968 29UR)SISSY
[euibuQ "gL/0L/8 '6VE‘PPL$ JO JUNOWE 10BJUOD [Bl0) B JO uonesedsid yim panroidde jnun PPY) Sajeloossy s01n98 a
10} Z6v'96$ 40 spuny |euonippe paacidde pieog — §1/LZ/S | SLVD ISISSE O} JUB)NSUOD pieog 106L/LE/8 | 8Lzl BVEPYLS ' Boliald insuoy | @dUeljdwo)
"JaU00S 10 SAep g 1Xau ay) uIyum
1no spiq ay) arey o0} Buidoy ale ap) "Spuny |eiepa-
Buisn ‘siaysem snqg z Joj ‘e)aidwoo jsow|e ‘payeip
Buieq si g1l — 6l/8/g N0 puss pue szieuy o}
JuswaInoold Joj pamairel Buieq g1 | Jo Yelp [eulq — ) paadold
. - i S8U0 Mau Yym aoe(dal 0} 80110N
61/Z/y "wdg 1e 61/62/ :eleq Buuado pig "payoljos oiik &1L 16 EAailiod i o
gll — 6L/Z/S ‘pemaInal juswsalinoold Buuado 0} JOpuUB/\ "SIBUSEM 610Z/9L/L 20uenss| 90Z1# Hd
Piq ye peas Ajpignd spig — 61/61/9 “AINr Ul piq }s8MO] snq (z) om) Joy spiq panroiddy - 10 SyzaMm uonoNNSU0y SIaysep sng
0l 000‘'685$ o pieme panoidde pieog — GL/QL/L | pPe)IOS SBY JUSLISINDOIY pieog £ UIYHAA 000'685% abe||iL g1l uoljonisuos
'610¢ "9 yd4e ‘wdoo g
:8le anq pig "1S!| JOPUSA O} pa|lEwWS PUE 8])ISqam 0} (BLiLz/E)
811 peisod S1v0 — 61/9/z "OT1 ‘dnoi9 uononsisuo) i
Ao _Lmuv_n jsemal o _u.._m_.sm DLt cae) Z00-IDUSUEL | BUBLIOD-6L0ZH# 61/£2/6 au jo POEL# ¥d
S PUB 'Spiq € panedal S1v0 “pousdo spig - 61/9/€ gl —-JeusD Ysuel] | BLOZ/6LIE ‘Od/dIN | ®duenss| 271 ‘dnoig deueg
‘perolddy 384 — GLIFLIE “6L/LZ/C UO INO JUSS Od EUEBLIOD JO UORONIISUOTD) panoiddy woly O SHBaMm 000'SZS% uonINIISU0D Jisuel] euepo)
Uim pasdold 0} 820N ‘panroidde pieog — 6LI6L/E loj g1 a3y pleog sAep 08| € UM | 1500 xouddy DY gl uonanssuo)
9
S)UBLLWOY | SBION papiAold panoiddy ajeq ajeq iy aweN adA] uonduasaq
Jonpoud [S921A19g plieog puz Hels JOpuap Jjuon 2991A188

syjuouw ¢ 03 | ulyym uondy pieog buipuag syoalold = en|g

_ Mmou [enocuddy pieog speau [ W) UOIIOY = MO[[@A

| 610z ‘L1 Jequiadag

plieog S1VvJ 40} Bugsi juswaindoid S1VI




1449
Py yue|d pue
13D eueloO)
Jo} senuawy
‘sulejunoy Bupuup ‘spiejjoq ‘sejoeldsoss usues)
ysely ‘suonels bBulbieyo ‘sisjueld  ‘syoed  SIg  Se 14g 000°055% mm.__n_n_:m
yons ‘saliuawe Jays-auy-4o, apnjoul o) mou payelp Buleq | py Mueld pue eueuUoD 150D :
gLl - 6L/8/z Wawsbeuel S1vyD Jed pjoy UQ — 6L/Liy | 10} Sepludwe Jjays-au-4O asy asgl agl xo.iddy adl gLl ? s|elLle|
N
/8L/G
610Z/61/¢ uo -Ajdde sajel :._.ﬁm.m Mom\&coo
pieog S1vD Aq panoiddy 6L0Z/6LIZ Apnoy + g seoinag S99IAID
~JesA jse| woy sebueyd | pejuoy seomes ebe ponoiddy zZ/8LIS BLIGLIS | sequsumey | O 1dV Wl jeio InIeg
ON “J0BJU0D JedA-¢ mau parcidde pieog — 6L/6L/Z 1884 (g) @a1y) pieog (mau) (mau) Aoy MmeT sipeqy INsuo) jeba
3
‘Aouaby ay)
Jo sjuswysiidwosoe ayy
‘S|lemausl yjuow-aaiem) () JNoj | asSeomoys pue ‘Ajiunwiwiod
0} dn Joj uondo ay) yim ‘syjuow z| 10} 000°‘sZ LS JO Junowe ay} Ul puelq aaisod
2y} Ul 89 0} UOHEPUSLIWOD8. PIEME JOBILOI UM ‘90USI0S | B UIBjUIBW pUB pling ‘aseq
100y s wuy Buuoos 1saybiH (D3d) @apiwwo) uolenjeay diysiapu g1 yD @sealoul
lesodoid 8ayy Aq pejeneae asem  yoiym siesodoid 0) subisap pue saifajens EELTISETS
G paAnl@dal S1yD 'Ssald Apj@spn 8yl pue 8)BJ0APY Bunexiew “joul ‘swelboid 81/81/6 Jeak sad m.
ay] u pasiuaape pue swuy ubisep oiydesb Zg o) Juss sem Buneyiew Bunnosxs pue panoiddy wnwixepw UG ubiseqg
UORE}DII0S dd4Y UV - 81/2Z/L "Parciddy pieog — 81/8L/6 Bupesuo ul 51O Isissy pleog 61/0E/6 8L/L/0L 000°SZL$ 1400y ddy Jydein
2)
"JOBJJUOD [EMBUSY BulpuswWodsy Jela O30 89S
‘BL/LE/E NIUY LL/L/p jO pouad |emeual oy [eciddy pieog
Spasu joeNUOD — [L/LZ/E 10BHUCO JO [emaual pasoidde
pieog — /LL/lZ/€ 1PBQUOD [emausy Buipuswwodsy
J8pe] 030 99S  'GL/LE/E nIW 8L/L/y o pouad
|lemaual o} parosddy pieog — 21/0Z/S "@ouspuodsalion 120z niy) (Bdd) auljosen
le uo paidoo sem saseyoind d-O By} pue oenend s|qejieae ¥1/€1/8 Uo |1eb Jad pue [@salg
yum paubis pue pazijeuy sem J0BJUCD — 81/9Z/€ "USUB s|emaual oel]|en4 aoud = xey 10} JoehuUOD Emurwm“,wmmma«.
Ao Ag pencidde ‘oeijjend Aq joenuoo paubisse sem ‘wajshs Buisuadsip 0Z/LE/E UYL 1e2A auo 0} pleme + 88} wpe ‘uonelljos 1BAUOD
[IO PIRUSUBK 1BY] UONEILOU PaAIRday — 8L/E/0L ‘Pieog 1any ay} ul ajedioiued |emaual Jeak G/M JJuo2 paaoidde 6200 % ysied Ao Bip SIVD ® o-0 juior
yolepy o} ob |m sIul "SIVYD peillou pue JesA suo o) 01 Ajjus ajeledas e U0 GL/GL/S ieak g [1oUNo0Y + SIdO (oed 18N Aq :
pesmausi sey yslied AlID — 61/8/2 "Panoiddy 354 — 6L/PLIE | SB UOREIDIOS [BN) L0Z Ul | uo pasosddy | jueund OlloN d-0 | A43g oju| paubisse sem) | ysiey Ao euijose pue
N0 JUSS J0BNUOO |EMBUSY "pascidde pieog - GL/6LIE | SLYD papnjoul ysued Ao pieog 0Z/LE/E0 | +L/LO/LL 29ud 10 | 'O PIRUSUBIN |  Aq g4y |2sail |and
1K 1ad ¢2z'959% = Jeak Jad
"/ L/EZ/Z U0 WNPUSPPY BIA N0 sasuodsal /€1'82€4 10 SjuswAed z ) ¥20E (sesng BINS 01)
no yim 2L/0z/z Ag siey enp seuinbul "/L/Z/S doeg 008°L1Z‘F$ 150D [B10) ‘s1eak (zv ‘ajepspoosg) ybnouy aseyaing/
anp sjesodold "suonnysul [eueuy s|dyinul o} pajoios ‘pouad Jeak ; JoAo Aed / 10} sasng dion jeyden | siesh ;o
d4¥ — 2L/8/z "sesng Biio o1 104 st Bupueuly “|leacidde oy “sasng BIND 01 Lzl [esaig aliqnd m:%ﬂmcz i
PJEOq |IN} 0} SAOW 0} W)l parosdde 39 - L1/9L/E 'SBSNG | soueuly aseyping/ases peaoidde Biio eapBwy . aoueul] shyg
Biuio o1 jo Bupueuy psaosdde pieog — 21112/ sng |ejden pJeog ¥Z02190 | 210z idy | | 8oueuly Jo dueg d4y Buroueul 4
4
SJUBLIWO? [ SIION papiAold pancaddy ajeq aleq iy awenN adA] uojijdiiosaqg
jonpold [S92IAIaS pieog pug Hels JOpUdA nuon ERIVNE]S

Syjuow ¢ 03 | UIyM uonay pieog Buipuad sjoafoid = anig

_ mou |[eaoiddy pieog spasu / Wwaj| uoijoy = MOJ[PA

| 610z ‘LI Jequiaydag

pieog S1vD 10} mc_u.w_l_ juswiaindoid S1VI




‘6L/E1L/8 @NQ 11| 1OPUSA 0}
juss uoneolijou pue ajisgam SlyD uo Umuwoa _Umw_tm_.;um
S| dd4¥ — 61L/92/9 '61/82/8 ®led ana MeN ‘pspiwgns
suonsanb Auew o) sasuodsal S1yD J0j BWI BIOW MO|E weoo:0l
pue 8jep anp puajxa 0} panss! L# WNpusppy — 6L/L/8 "d4y | 1B 6L/EL/8 :onQg s|esodold d4y
au) o} sabueyo axew pue suonsanb o) puodsal 0} panssi 8IeMI0S 443 610Z ‘lIed alemyos whm dy3
Z# WNpusppy = GL/FL/8 'SSeusAisuodsal o} pamainal — BIEM}JOS BpIM-LUB)SAS ul anosdde apIMm
JuBLLBINDOId "8jep anp uo panidal sjesodold — 6L/82/8 | 0} d4Y UB panssi S1vD o} p1eog agl asi asl agl wayshs alemyos
"d4¥ 8u} Jo sjuswalinbal [eoluyoal ay) 193w papiwgns
sjesodoud ayy JI Buwsiep ul Apeslb (D3d) @9nIWWLIOD
uoneneas |esodoid SI1yD diBy |m SOUEB)SISSE  SIU|
JaW ale sjuswalinbal pue speau uopedYIDads |BJIUYDa) WwalsAs
pUB MOS S1VD 2InNsus 0} paaleoal sjesodold ay) Jo malaal 21eM)j0g juswdojanag
[eoIUy28) 8y} ul sjuswpedaq Jusawaindold pue || S1vD 21/91/8 panocidde 394 d43 Jo . comumu_tomam
1SISSE 0S|E ||IM A3U ] 'dd4¥ UB 10} UORN|OS [BDIULDS) 81EeMOS 8LLZI8 pieme [euly ; au| mhw dy3
E 10} s08dS [eDjUYD2 ] pue (MOS) MOop 40 adoos pajielep e 81L/12/8 panciddy Bumoioy Buninsuon seoinBg
dojenap jiim JueynsuoD syl "gL/1z/g Uo panoiddy pieocg panoiddy pieog pieog skep og1 8L/LI6 viv'v6$ Joanju| ddy SIEM}OS
‘UYoea SUJUOW-Z | 1O} maual
0) suondo g ypm JoBAQUOD UBRA-¢  'DU| ‘SeolnieS Alunoss s|emaual 1802 S92IAI8S
ISSIapA O] papleme 10BNU0D AJUNJBS — gL/GL/L U0 pieme ‘uoneoo| ‘pA|g epLOo|H SLIEL/LL Ieak-suo |lenuue *ou| ‘sadIAIeg pJeng
|euiBuo paaoiddy pieog ‘pieog [N} 6} aAow 0} paroidde 0522 S1VD le seonesg panosddy Zio.l 000°2£2$ Ainoag sa0IAIeg
S8jIWWo) I94 — 8L/8/LL paroidde pieog - gLEL/LE pIEND AJUNISS - J/ T pJeog B6LILE/ZL 6111 ~xoiddy 19SIBN dy Ayunoeg
S
"J0JOBJJUOD S90S Isueljeled G| o) Se uolleuodsuel | (ez0z Ny s|emausal 000°6.6°0%
AN 0} IOBJUOD JO PIEME UB SPUSWIWOdA] S1V0) u o_mﬂwﬂw_.mrm:. 1DENUOD | Jeak auo z vav
%u_:mm_ sapiwwo) _._o_.ﬁ_.._m\,m_ |lesodold 8y} uo paseg AN O 811022 1eak g /M JOBIJUOD junowe .n_m:m._._.. Sa2IAIog
uneaw Ig4 -gl/zL/L ‘Bunssw pieog ged |qun pausjep lapinold @oinies paaoidde [enusjod) he JoBHUOD sa9IMIBg .
PJEOg — 81/91/1 "AIN 03 pieme panoidde pieog — 81/0z/z | NSUBIL-BIEd PRIOBIUDD pieog 120y 8L/9/G ek ¢ AN e jisueljeled
d
0z9veS
:@0104D
onad
10} 150D
"000°0S$ 40 Ploysaly) 8,030 xouddy
ay} uiyum ‘0Z9'pe$ JO B0 B J0f 82I0YD 0N8d O] PepIEme 0.9°15$ (1o 10301n)
80 M 10 Jojo "DZ9TTES o] [IM 6LOZAD JO Jspulews) ‘uondo [emaual auo LM BL/LE/ZL | @210yD onjed
Jo} oejUOD “(029°9ES JO [EJ0} B JB) PINY ISNEuxe |9salp | 6L/LE/ZL  uBnoiy  swey ybnouy)
‘lo sulqin} dlnelpAy 10} S1yD UM SIOBIJUOD AjusLno | 8say) 10) pa)Ioljos sem all [an4 azealnuy
oym ‘(000°SL$ Jo |Bj0) e Joj) [en4 zenBiy O] pepieme | ue os ‘azaayuy 10 |10 6L0Z [udy zanbiyy 1o} =
9Q (M 8zsalljue By} aloym ‘pspleme ag 0] |I0 Jojow | JOJOW Joj aoe|d ul 1Pe;UOD u| anoudde 150D |EJO . (ezoannuy) pue
pue szeaynue 10} g1| — 6L/2/y "Parcidde pieog — 6L/9L/F | OU sey Ajuaund SiyD 0} pieog 6LILEIZL 6L/LIL ‘xoiddy | ang zanbipy gLl (10301) 11O
0
SJUBLILIOY | SBION papiAold panoiddy ajeq ajeq Jwy aweN adA ] uonduasaq
jonpoid [S93IAIRS pieog pug HelS Jopusp 13uo9n CRITSETS

Syjuow ¢ 0} | Uly}Im uonoy pleog Buipuad syoaloid = anig

_ mou [eaoiddy pieog spasu / wWaj| UOIIOY = MO|BA

| 610z ‘21 Jequedeg

pieog S1vO 10} m_.__uw_n_ juswaindold S1VvVI




“}a8M SIU} JB)B| JUSS 8q ||IM pue

Z\l Jo pesjsul sasnq g Jo aseyoind sy} joeyel 0y pabueyo mﬁw_u el
aqg [m "O'd ey} Yuswsebeuew Jad ‘9102 "08Q ul |eroldde slusLIUBISSY
pieoq eouis Bupuad "O'd 3PN — ZI/kg/e (PIoy 8z 0"922'000'G4 pouad Aienyeq
uo) sesng g 1o} Od @nss| 0} O30 wodl H¥d paacidde = mo.mmm%N_ 9 hasand wwmw..uwm Moﬁ
Buplemy —"LL/LLP Syuow 9L S| alep Asalsp LULLL niy} siesk g 0z 422 LL1S ainpayas Atsnyaq
9yl ‘O'd Buipuses aiojeq way) woy ojul wy Ang J0 yoam 13A0 palapio senuawe use
uo Buniepy "sasng g Jof B 0} yeem siyl panssi 9L/0z/z} 810z aq |im peppe (g) sesng
aq |Im / “O"d Buipuad = £1/2112 = B 0} ues "O'd sseqomd o, | 92QiON |  panss) ooy | *@oudsngad al joseIq
N—LFN___N ‘@aueusijuiep m|_|<o >D peAl@d8l usaq arey OF'Z9E'190'SS 'O'd 8101 panouddy ul aw.)_—m_u usaq 40 @seyaing _Umw_“v H G¢ 30015 7
Sasnqg g ||e Jey] payljou sem Juswalndold — 6L/E/L B2 08/'LZ¥$ :2oud un sng pieog sasnq g sey ‘0O’d Jepio e 271 ‘Buynn Buijjoy S3|2IYsA
"B119]0.d pue Jak|4 mapN ‘gAd WOl SpIg £ PaAISosy v I6.L$ suofejs
S1VD — LL/GLI0L "MDIAB] J9pun |iS 2JB paAisdal spig uonels BuiBreya ouosfs
€ IV — LLIFL/LL “leacidde o) pieoq ||nj O} Wa)l 34} aA0W pleme Buibeyo ¢ Jjeisul pue
0} PSIOA 384 "QAE AQ paniwans piq aAisucdsal pue psoud 6102 0 @1ep ay) au0 pue sng suone}s oBuey Aianeg
1SaMO| 84} 0} Sasnq oo} GE duPse £ Jo aseyaind ay} o} ‘ZZ o4 Ag woly siesh 2U0 JO} 1500 Buibieyo
JOBAUOD JO PIEBME UEB Papuawwodal Sy — Bugesw 394 aq o) Ausalleq | G xau sy} P_c:_xoa.ne. U_..;um_m papuaxg/m
- 81/ZL/L "sesnq g 10} gAg 03} pieme paroidde pieog 8L/ 10} pasn mﬂm_h_wwmwm m.__ﬁwc_ (usg)
— 8L/9L/L '6L/2g/Z AQ s1ep Alaaep uim sesng 29|3 € Jo ‘suonels buibieys asnoy uo panss| Od aq uea mc_m.._m:u ¥ (g) sashng
19pI0 3U} J0) QA ©) PEIHANS “O'd — 8L/L/E "BPEW 3q UED -u| € [[eJsul pue abuel 2LI9L/L EENTILY) fpussetng | PUeAeSng 2113993
JuswAed alojaq sjuswalnbal 14 Jad sjuswnoop pieme | Alsheq pspusixa/m 100} Gg parosddy € 10} 20Uy ouo3g ¥o01S =
-jsod uo Bugiep “PaAIR0BI Useg SABY SISNG € IV — GL/L/G | ‘Sesng oujosje ¢ aseyaingd pJeog £2/9L/L0 | 8L/9L/LO pig [E101 ¢ sasng Buyjoy S9[2IYSA
A
Jeah 1ad 020¢ sunpr ssez01d
‘seoud awes je /1/L8/8 2Z/LEr8 D SoEs i
iy} JOBIJUOD pus)xa ybBnoiyy LLILL8 sBRIENY Ry S|EMBUE!
0} paaibe Jeakpoon s|emausl nay si 910z 1e2h 8UO 7 /M
‘uRyYoIN (£) % JERAPOOD () e —————— Jeah 1e8Ap00D) 0Z/LE/8 NI} sieak
‘auojsabpug (1) wouy spig € panladay Sy ‘Buuado pig auo Z /m Um = ¢ 10} 10BAUOD
21/22/9 "Jopuaa a|qisuodsal pue aAISUOdSal }Semo| auy) Sem LL/E€1/. panoidde 394 siesA g io} | joBRUOD | e 971 (eourUaUIER)
auojsebpug 1ey) paulwusiap sem | -L1/0g/9 "auo)sabpug LHBLIL 1oBHUOD uaung (sieaf ¢ 1o} ‘suoneladQ ail sasng 10}
0} JOBUOD JO pJEME UB puswwodal sjdaq juswainooid LL/I8L/L parosddy leniu) 1800 }s8) all] seouawy Aiddng
PUE JUIBWN S1VD-LLIELIL “LL/8L/L uo panciddy pieog panaiddy pieog pieog 0zZ/LE/8 LLILIG 000°'009$ | suoisabpug [eusiEp aseaT] all |
1
Nmmo.mm 1$
‘0Z/LE/L MUY GL/L/8 SN
woy SwalsAS VAV ® OdV “JAY 10} aBessnoo Aueuem | SAS YAV B OdV AV Rl o e sedIAIeg
pue Loddns yos) maual o} - §L/ZL/L "8L/LL/L UO paroiddy 10} 8belanon silitie e Ruenem yoddns | yojRNRINOY
pieog -Qg/Lg/. uybnowyy oenuUOD  seoiules  Ajuellem | AJueliepp R esuBUBUIBK anoddy ‘poddns Y3} alemjog uoa|
mausy '6L/LL/6 U0 gG0'GIL$ Jo) [emaual anoidde o) pieog ‘woddng yoa | 0) pieog 0Z/LEIL 6L/1/8 10 1834 BuQ YoJeNaINoy | o) someg 2IEM]JOS
SJUBLIWOA | SAION papiAoid paroiddy ajeqg ajeq iy aweN adA) uonduosag
1onpoud [Sa21AI8S pieog pug HelS JOpuap juon RV NETS

syjuouwl ¢ 03 | uiyym uonoy pieog Buipuad sjoafoid = anig

_ mou [eaoiddy pieog spaau / Waj| UOI}OY = MOJ[BA

| 610z ‘2L Jequisydag

pieog S1v9 Joj Buisi juswiainooid S1VD




000'0€$ J0 xew pue
JY/0G$ 4o} pelsi| S821AaS Ul 8ouBUld JO
Jojoalig Aq papssu souelsIssy — 6LOZ
Aely "sfhep g 'xoidde 1o} joERUCD

"D}8 ‘SUOIIBI|IDUCIAI YUE(] ‘SB|geAladal sjuelb jo
uoneoyudA ‘spunoooe Bulouodal Ul aouUB)SISSE

LLL6LOZ Od

joenUOD

JUsUNO pusixs 0} S1VO — 6L0Z AINF | yim juswpedeq soueuly spiaoid o} JUB)NSUOD | xuoD uspLM 6L/S/0L 6LISIY 000°0€$ SlIBH PI2IA juejjnsuoy |eroueuld
‘lemausy
leak aup - uefeq nfuopn Bu
‘g)s8) m:mu_u _w% omwmmmb:_nommomom a:m ‘saakojdws aaISuas Aj9jes Jo) S80IAISS 80IAIBS JO BAlsuaS AlBjes 1o} s821MBS v g
UM NSHI UNM JOBIJUOD [BMBUSI UJUOW | 8SNQe 20Uelsgns/ [04ooly ® BnuQ J0j SeoBS | 750610z Od syjuow z| wpy Ayed paiyL
-zl 8y} Buipusixe sl S1vO — 6L/8/g | Joensiuniwpy Buikued piyl psjepuew Y14 | Buod usimm 0Z/0SlY 6L/LIS 000°5L$ NSHI 0,€ 104oo|y @ Bnig
.Q_cw._m_ummv_ S1VD pue pieog
"sje|dwos 0} syluow g ARjewixoidde | o) Juss aq | podai [eul “Apnis uopesuadwo S32IAIBg
2q p|noys auljpwi] "S1yD 10} _.meQD._Q \Cm_mm J0J s}aMJeEW Jejiwis 0} aledwoo paleulwla] H_-._.Q_._Um
pepiwgns  Joybelen -  gL/0Z/LL | PUE diysiepes| SLvD UM 188l 0] JUBYNSUCD | nuod usuum nun 6LILIL 000°st$ Jaybe|en Apnig dwog Asejes
‘pazijeuld YBNUOD — 8LIZLIY
"8L/LE/ZL uBnouy) pusixe pue
'GZ9'Z1$ 10 Junowe JusLND 0} 69/ '8LY
PPY “uwummze enuon -gL/9zZ/L
‘6L/GL/G yBnoiyy pusixs pue 06L'Z
OE IBepUsINd ERAGCE — cuikis (8¢ (ce¢ ¥d) sBuime.q [endesuoy
‘610Z/1/6 UBnoyy pusixa pue 0v9'zZLS | -Md 'SHS MEW|BA / BuElOD JB SjusliaAcidw) 1S08L0Z Od Y Xepy ou| ‘alo) HEW[EA\ BUBLIOD
PPY :p8puawly 10BHUOD) — 6L/ZZ/S | ONH VSuBl] wsiu| ayy epiaoid [m Juelnsuod | suon ushum 6L/LI6 8LV 0zg'ors 8 S0J4uop EcAd
1yg
PY Yue|d B 13D Jisuea |
19 PEOY MUE|d pUE Jajua)) Jsuel | BUEY 00 SO0IAlaS
"JOpUBA O} | BUBLOD Je S80AIBS  Uopoedsu| JUSPISRY | 260610z Od dnouig uonoadsu| Juspisay
JuSs pue panNoexa J0euoD — 61/g2/S | Pue Bunse| sjeusie spioid o) JOPBHUOD | nuon uspum 0Z/0E/E 191414 000°05$ ejed ayl ® Bunsa] sjepalep
A safloe
anNg
JopusA 0} | g uopoadsu| SHS [IND B pUB JUBWSSSSSY | ogogLozoq | MEIS JanE ‘au| PAIG BpLIO[] 0522
1USs pue pajnosxs JoejuUO] — 61/9/9 | Jusuodwo] Buiping e aje|dwod 0} JueynsuoD | nuopusnum | sAep ci 6Li62/E 005°8v$ ‘HO3109 S1VD jo juswssassy
“JOPUSA 0] uoneoyddy Jueis pue josloid 189 8W 10 |  gp16L0z Od Jjwy xepy | uonelodion | @OUBISISSY uoneoijddy
JUSS puUE pajndaxs JOBNUOD — GL/0E/S | SIO9dSE UIBMSO yim S|vD ISISSE 0] JUB)NSUOD | nuonuspum | 6L/LEZL 6LIV2IS LLO'SP$ g1INH jueld @ling Loda sn
paroiddy ajeq ajeq aweN

sjuswwon

‘epuebe Bunesw pieog 91/0z/Z1 U0 29 0} pa|NPaYIS SI

PapIAOId SaDIAIRS

032

pug

e 030 Aq jo8loid panro.idde jsajel ejeaipur s)ybiybiy mojjak

=

uonduosaqg

a|ge|iene
UOHEPUSLIWODSY pIBMY J0BNUOD ,0€ JaquaroN Aq anp sjemsual 1A1000'%$ .
oq [m slesodoid “siesodoid |epusiod sidynw o) payoios 1eah ymw_wu%u_ m_‘_ww)wucwhmmwwm_
usaq sey d4¥ — 9L/0L/LL ‘Panle@oal siesodoid ¢ Buowe S90INIBS 2IEMYOS oL/0ZIZL U0 Z/M snid ooommw aay ubiseq-a
i1saybly paiods oym ‘01607 JusjeA0) 0} 94 Aq pasoidde pue BunsoH sapnjoul parosddy sieah ¢ ubisagay o16o seomag 1Seq-oy
piEmy — 9L/SL/ZL "SHSGsm mau payoune| — 2oz Ainp - UBisag-ay 8)sqaM pieog 6L/LEZL L1/10/10 slewnsy juajeron a1IsgaM S}ISqap
M
2PIAOI aAoudd aje aje awe adA uonduosa
SjUsWWOY / SaJ0N PapiAoid P e v ed 1ed iy N 46 uopduase(q
Jonpoid /sadiAleg pieog puz uels lopusp J3uo9n ERIVVELS

Syjuow g 0} | ulym uolldy pieog Buipuad sjoaloid = anig

_ mou jenosddy pieog speau / Waj| UoHOY = MOJ|@A

| 610z ‘21 1oquisydag

pleog g1y 10 BURSIT JUSWaIN0.d S1VD




"PINIS ISNEUX
[2s8Ig pue [I0 aulgin]l dlnelpAH 1oy
piq 1Semo| Sem |an4 zanbiy ‘aseals)
[83UAA B PIN|4 UOISSIWSUEI] ‘IO JOION

‘1O Jesg) - 10} pIq 1SemOo| ay} sem [I0 {piny
JSBGD UNS — "sjonpold pejeey |0 jo isneyxs
fanep pue aseyaind ayj Joj siaiddns |@salp
gjesedas 7 0} pJeme plq mau ‘10 aulqun)
panoidde pieog —zL/LL/L Alloyine olnephH)
ploysedyl 03D 9y} ulyym sl pue 079'9€%
BL/LE/ZL NIUY 61/L/L JOo polad By} 1o} :lend
Jeak auo IO} pamaual aq [[IM SIOBJJUOD Zanbipy
asay) ‘|1ang zenbBiy woly syonpoid Em.:cou._._omo
10} 0L9'98$ Pue }SEOD UNG WOy 194 000°05%
spnpoid 1o} §90°ZL$ ©) 1SOD |enuue “9ZsaljUB pUE [0 Jojow ale swa) Z aseyy | 30 iunowe
paroalold au) Buuamol Agalayy ‘abesn ‘610z Jeak oy} 1o} 000'0L$ AlRlewixoidde | PIBOE MOIRg (asealb
pajedionue [eUIBLIO B UBL) SSB] Yonw Je pajewnse s 2oud se ‘leaoidde Joy pieog oy | St PIOUSaI4) [@aum pue
8l /1L0Z 3IAD lo} sjponpold psiejsy 0B [im asay "sAep O XU By} ulyym papaljos | S€ e piny “suey
1O 8ayy Joj abesn ay) jeyl paulwis}ap aq ||IM g1 | MU Y "PIq 8q [|M ‘Sasealoul C} 8|qe ollBLIUAS
usaq sey ) — ZLSLZL Cudy 2oud Jaybiy oy anp ‘pamaual jou sway | SO0 SLVD 10 1E9D)
Ul 0£9°LS$ 1o} ZenBipy O} J0BUCD [E10} T ind | SO0°Z13%
anoldde 0} pieog ‘0L9'QE$ IO} SWON "9SBa.oul J0j SUONEINOED |dd apinold Sjemaual se0) 0207 Uer 10} 6107 ‘das
1810 o) S1VD UM JOBJUOD ARUSLIND | O} SPBBU JOPUBA “[BMBUSI BU} JO SWI 1B |dd U} 1eak auo ung Aq ssas0id Ainbuj [emausl UEIS
Asyy pue ‘Q00'GL$ 10§ @zZBAUUY uo paseq juawysnipe 8old 2z/91/L ybnoays | ¢ sey jpenuoy (saueuajuiepy)
ay) papieme 2q pjnom |an4 zanbipy 10 spouad Jeah () auo anISsa0oNs (f) Jnoy ‘BL/LE/ZL (110 10y0p) sjonpoid U.&um_wm_
‘029'¥E$ 10} IO JOJON By} pepleme | 0} dn @|qejieae sUONdo [EmBURY J0BIUOD 102 | NUUI LL/LL/L 029°7ES
2q pinom a2l10y]) ollad "azasluy ‘6L/LE/Z L UBnouyy JoE1QUOD ‘BZ88BNUY PUB IO panoidde @009 a1 seyddng pue
PUB JIQ J0JOI 10} PSYOII0S g1 mm__.ﬁ_a. Jojo Joj uondo [emaual (1) suo sey g1l 6102 pieog 6L/LEZL 6L/LL onad B 1)
‘Bunsaw
pieog Jedoud 8y 1B paojussaid
ag pinom yoiym ‘enuoo  ssbuol syjuow g
e OJul Jsjus 0} 8s00YyD AW S1vD ‘Alessaosu Jeuonippe
‘weiboid 10|ld JeYy syl ponoidde | punoj Se SESUR JBUI0 PUB SBAISS S 1D ue maual
pleog 8y pue Bunesw pieog | Jey) Seale JUALIND AU} JO BPISINO JBUYS SSINOU o} uondos/m "ou| weiboid
8y} 18 passnosip sem siyl — GL/ISL/E | S1vD @m8s o) wesboid joid ysuenosoipy 6LISL/L 6L/6LI9 8102121 000°'sz$ ‘ooTjsued) Jo|id }Isuesjooily
"JOBJUOD JO pieme Buipuswwooal uoneoldal SpY @ abelo)s pnojo usweoe|dal ioAID papuUBLILLIODS)
FENET] 03D wasg ‘ainjusA | Juejsul ‘salepdn JA G ‘uopnjos Jansas dnyoeq .m%m% d LM_ Jape 030
papuawWwWooal O3d'siesodoud | Jsniss auo Ul e pue sapnjou| “iaAlas dnyoeq sa|bojouyosa} aouej|ddy
8LIZLI9
€ PSAI9DS) pue paseApy - gLog Jdy | Bunisixe SivD Jo) waeysAs || dn-yoeq Jeek 5 | zgogioz Od €2/0€/9 8L/L/L 82’8z aInuap Jantag dn yoeg ||
IU/SZ1$ -e1ey
(sewoy] eulesd) D77 ‘esudisug 03D 82U} JO uonoalIp JBpUN ‘sjusipedsp L0Z6L0Z Od asudiajug
Ov1d 03 19B4U0O panss| = §L0Z KNP | S1vD snouea jo Jybisieno sepiroid JUBYNSUDD | puod usnm 6L/LEEL 6L/62/L 000°05$ avid OVD wiaju|
‘suofouny yH pazienads ‘pepasu se 030 au} Aq paubisse syse] osiw 198.3U0D
Jayjo pue aouejsisse YH buginsuoy | Jeulo pue souepinB ‘sisAleue  ‘uone)Nsuco 2L/8/0 1e9h sug Bunnsuog 03D 8yj 0} douelsissy [210adS YH
8L0Z unp '0z0z ‘Le Aew ybnoiy | ‘eonpe jo Aem Aq Se0AIeS/SE0IN0SBI MH | po1sL0z O4 (14 058) HH joenuod
BNUOD  pepuslxd - BL0Z  Bunf | sajebiseul [enuspyuod sepiacid JUBHNSUCD | - nuos usnum 0Z/LE/S gL/L/9 000°05% J}81aAg 93 juejinsuod ¥yH
"000°05$ Unowe J0e/UOD XEJ V1o dnoig
‘gLOZ Jep ‘sebBueyo Jayo oN ‘6L0OZ (Buifqqo|) seo1uas [eUONEONPT PUE SUOIERY Iﬂ%ﬂwﬁwn_ Y XEW ABalens Bunnsuog
ybnoayy JoeHUOD pusix3 — GLOZ JBI | 'siiely |ejuawwaA0D  sepioid  JUBHNSUCD | nuos uspLm 6L/LEZL BLILIL 000°05$ ulayinos Suoljejay JUusSWUIdA0D
SJUBILIOY | SOION papiAoid panoiddy ajeq ajeq iy awepN adA] uonduoasaqg
jonpoid /S@2IAIaS pieog pug Hels JOpuap uon 921A138

syjuouwi ¢ 0} | UlylIm uonoy pieog Buipuad sjoaloid = an|g

_ Mmou [enociddy pieog spaau [ wia)| UOIOY = MOJ|D A

| 6102 ‘L) 19quieydeg

pieog S1v9 Joj Bupsi] juswiaindoid S1VD




14/002$ -=ley

"S30IBS  |euoissajoid psleal  Isylo 6116 saibajeng

pue uejd uonesuadwon SISNOAA ue|d dwon SIaMIop S1VD S1enjeas Z1Z610Z Od WY XBA jolid S8JIAlag uolenjeAy

S1VD @y} jo uonenjeas — 6L0Z 3dag | 0) seomes |euoissajoid sepinoid JuBlNsuOD | puopusuum | GL/LERZL 61/6/6 000°05$ 1eqoio dwo) ,sIaIoM
1u/5v$ e1ey

'SUOROUN}  JuBWAIND0ld  pazienads ‘siseq papasu se Ue uo ‘0Oyd

JBUJ0 pue 9JUEJSISSE JUSWaINd0ld | pue Jabeuepy Juswainoold 8yl Aq psubisse Bumynsuo)

Bfupnsuoy  'siseq pepeau SB, | SB SHSB] JUBWSIND0l4 JBUJ0 puB ‘Sa0Inas GLILLIG juswaindold

UB UO 61/LE/Z) UBNOI) BL/6/6 PaIdx | jleo-uo, yim Bupuom Ajeouoads ‘SSOINSS | yezeloz Od iy Xel Zapueulay juejinsuog

JBY} JOBJUOD mousy — §LOZ 1dag | Juswainoold papasu se, sapinoid Jueynsuoy | suonushum | BLILEZL 6L/0L/6 000'6Z$ Aygey jusuwainaoid

SIUBWIWIOY [ S3ION papiAocid panoiddy ajyeq ajeq 2wy aweN adA ) uonduasaq
JoNpold /S82IAIaS pieog pu3g ueis JOpuap uo9n 92IAIag

syjuow ¢ 0} | uiylim uonoy pJeog Buipuad sjoeloid = an|g

_ Mou [erolddy pleog Spaau [ wa}| UOIIOY = MOJ[DA

| 610z ‘L1 soquisydag

pieog S1vO 10J} mr__“—m_l_ juswiaindoid S1VvVI




AUGUST 2019 Route Revenue and Ridership Totals

[ Route

Number |Route Name RIDERSHIP | REVENUE
8 Gus Young Ave / BRCC 3,734 $ 1,815.39
10 Scenic Hwy / Southern University 8,069 $ 4,162.40
11 Northside Circulator / 72nd Ave / Scotlandville 4,203 $ 2,754.49
12 Government St / Jefferson Hwy 8,297| $ 3,571.07
14  |Thomas Delpit Dr / Roosevelt St 5,671| $ 3,280.50
15 Blount Rd / Crestworth 3,761| $ 2,205.55

16 Capitol Park Trolley 93| Free service
17  |Perkins Rd 11,045] $ 5,741.66
18 Tigerland / Cortana Mall 8,807| $ 5,044.93
20 North Acadian Thwy 10,954| $ 6,432.36
21 Fairfields Ave 7,887| $ 4,549.20
22 |Winbourne Ave 8,508 $  4,977.68
23 Foster Dr 5,858 $ 3,131.53
41 Plank Rd 20,639 $ 11,576.01
44  (Florida Blvd 30,738 $ 15,395.50
46 Cortana / Gardere / L'auberge 7,423| $ 5,504.42
47 |Highland Rd / LSU 25,777 $ 13,260.03
54  |Airline Hwy North / Southern University / Metro Airport 11,972| $ 7,174.55
57 Sherwood Forest Blvd / Greenwell Springs Rd 16,920 $ 11,929.22
58 Coursey Blvd / O'Neal Ln / Ochsner 4,842| $ 2,817.98
59 East Florida Blvd / O'Neal Ln / Ochsner 6,183| $ 4,292.77
60 |Medical Circulator 1,122| $ 502.01
70 CATS Terminal / Southern University / Baker 5,210 $ 3,538.45
72 Florida Blvd Limited Stops 5,789 $ 2,315.36

80 Southern University Shuttle / Jag Train 1,054| Free service

RIDERSHIP | REVENUE

Total 224,556| $ 125,973.06




68°cll % |S1e - $ |0 {6L0Z/c2/20 @oinias papud) ssaudxg umojumoq f podiy| £01L
SDIAISS 2814 gcl'l 221A19s gald |¥S0°) amnys Austsalun weyinog| og
c1'128°l1 $ [24¥'S 9eslee $ |681°G sdolg peyw pA|g epuold| ZZ
LrSye'e $[LL9'G S'ges'e $ |0Lg's Jaxeg [ AjIsIaAlun wsynog / [eujuuel S1vo| 0L
18°€9% $ |L08 LO20S $i1CLLL J01e[ndal) [edPeiN| 09
LE'1L0S2 $ 5Ly 11262 $jesto suUsy2Q f uT [e2N,0 / PAIF BpUO[] 1seT| 65
77 L08'2 $ [ovLl'y 86°218C $ [2Pe'y 12UsyoQ / U7 [BAN,O / PAIG AssIno)| g6
LL'E€SL 0L $ |29s'cL ZZ'8e6°L1 $ [oge'oL Py sBuudg [|aomuaais) [ PAIg 159104 poomisyg| /G
152/1'T $ 12ev'y - $|o (6L02/£2/20 9017495 papus) pAIg BiR] [ U e[[ISNIq / [[BIN O3 [IBIN| 9G
216902 $ (L9862 - $ |0 (6102/c2/20 2010i8S papud) DTUY 4S / PAIG BPUO[] JseT| §§
08'68¢'0 $ [82E0L 0S'GBE'SL $[2i6°L) MHodury ojaly / fusILAlUN WAINOS f YUUON AmH aullly| ¢S
66°G58 $IPLL - $1|0 {6102/c2/20 9010405 popus} 10jenoa) Jexed| 2§
¥6'612°) $12.2°) - $10 (6L02Z/52/20 ©21M4S popuR) a0jeIN21ID SHEQ UsD| 0§
£€e'68lel $ 165.°9¢ £€009C°¢Cl $|222'62 NST/ Py PuelybiH| ¢
- $ |0 [AA 8 $ |eve'L (610Z/72/20 2o1nias uebaq) sbisgne, f asaples [ eueno)| af
PSELEY $ {0669 - $|o (6102/c2/20 @21n45s papus) abiaqne,] /1070 / 2lepien| oy
£6°06¥'Gl $ [LSEPE 05°S6E'GL $|8cL0¢E PAIG BPUOId| ¥P
€0°85.° 11 $ {/¥e'ie 1092511 $ |6€9°0¢C Py yueld| Ly
68°/95°C $ |Z68°¢ £9Lel's $ (868G Qg 19so4; ¢
98°¥S5'c $ 869 89°2/6'F $ |e0s'e SAY SWINOGUIM| 22
B61°€CZC $|6LL's 0Z°6¥S'y $1/89'/ OAY Sp[ollile]| LEg
$£802'G $ (8¢2'6 9eCEY'9 $ |¥S6°01 Amij] ueipeosy uuoN| o0z
GF'626°E $ |19¥°2 £6°¥H0°S $ (L0288 llely euelo) f puenabll| gi
L0519 $i2L8'llL 99 L¥L'G $15H0°LL py supjtad| JL
8o1AI8s 93l L 20IMBS 9814 €6 Aojod] xued joudeq| al
- $ [0 $5°602°2 $(192°¢ (6L02/v2/20 90ir10s uebeq) yuomiseld [ py Junofg| SL
151912 $ 2997 05082 $ 11296 1S MPAdsooy jaq udeg sewoyy| 1
18 20Le $18L4°L L0LISE $ |162'8 AmH uosiagar /1S Juswiwanog| gL
027 1E8°C $|L1EY 67 ¥5.°C $ |€0gy SIINPUERODS [ SAY PUZ/  ICIBINDIIY SPISUMON| LI
GLele'e $ |92g’L 0¥’ 2oL’y $ 16908 AISI9AIUN wiByINOg [ AMH 21U32S] 0L
o1°'200C $|i9L'e B6EGLE°L $ |¥el'e J0dg /eAay Bunoj sno| g
ANNIATY diHS¥3a ANNIATY dIHSY3AR sALNoY| #
gLoz 6102

8102 1SNONY OL NOSIHVdINOD 6102 LSNONY




YA
AB(T
SBURSUILD Bupassu=y A= ioge] souspuadapy| Aeq [euowsyy | Aepug poog SRS PRy Slea) meN

VT 0 0 0 0 X3 1 0F [ [ [ [ S SR2p [FJ0L

0 0 i i 1] [ [i] i 0 SAeq fousbiswy

8E ¥ S S (2 ¥ S ¥ S EpUNS JO Joquiny

8 S ¥ 5 S E ] ¥ g SAEPIMES IO PN

£91 22 44 0z - ¥4 0¢ 0z ¥4 SATDSOpA J0 THGUINN

€01 23Q AON [=Ts) dag Gy nr uny Aepy 1oy TEW ed uer
|9 00L1 o |0 Jo |0 lags'vze lazyeoz Jezo‘ Loz |izeeLz }ivs'1oz lagielz Jesriez |esv'iee Sdid.L INIMTNN TvL01)
198 1] ] [i] 1] 0 [1] [#] [¢] [¢] 1] oLl P {BLOZ/EER0 PAAIDS POpUR) SSoHEXTIMOIEMEG 7 Hodiny 20+
ZeqIL B Ve A 205 SPEE ZL9E 020 €85°C SmNYS RISHAIIN WSNeg [
STLEY B8LE 9195 CI8F NS 602G BGG'Y 795'S 160G SUGIS DI PAE BPHOI] zL
£56 52 [iT¥4] 0S8 ¥ 965 F I0EY 108F BEC ¥ S0LY 851F JovEqg [ AHSIBARIN UWISNOS [ [EUINLIS] S1vD 0L
VB6'L ZIl PELL G201 £8C L 206 107 573 96/ 1GIEMONT) [ENPORN 03
S €819 0SES LELG 0.ES 030G L8 038’y 965 JOUSYIQ f U TEaN,O [ PAIG EPLICIY 1563 65
BEE LS ZvEY SEy S8y 805G 005 B0LY B99F 106 JAUSUIQ J U [BIN,O ] PAIR AesIn6D [
LT LEL 02691 BPGSGL BIEGL ZFC 9k ¥Be Sk Iv)GL D9ZEL oviel Py SEUNAS [[FMUSIS | DAIH 150104 POOAIBYS 5
SSY oL 0 0 [4 A [ [ [] [} ) ] 567 ¥ 0965 ( 6L0Z/E2/20 BIIAIIS Popiia) g SFe Lt eiiSriaT-Hen-er e 3
€98 0 0 0 [{ 0 [ [} ) o o E6FE LIEE {610Z/82/20 99IAIB5 POpUB) STua 45 1 PHE CPHoRIses 5]
069'68 ZLEL) EEAT) G8I'6 £65 0L E61 0k L0&01 BLOCH 0002k 3rodiry ondfy [ ARSIBAILN WISUIN0S | YHON AMH SUIHTY ¥5
0L 0 0 0 0 a [4 [ 0 0 0 BST L BLFL (6102/62/20 99ini53 popus) IereiReaa+oen 8
e [} [1] 0 0 1] [4 [H [4 D 0 €902 ST [ GLOZ/ET/E0 SUARIS POPUB) Ao3RRDIS SRS HorD 5
ZFLIBL L11°GE g95'ze LivEe 9652 8I&1T 8vF e 86LvC 1B GE NS 174 PUBIUBIH I
ZLEFEY SerL ZeE L [ [ Sz G069 [ 0 (6105/72/20 901AIaS UEDRY) 9B.BUNE, | | S1opIEs) | BUELIGH E3
15901 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 892G €885 (6LOZ/EE/T0 DINISE PapUs) R TOT0 1 94opRD ay
BEELPT 2E10E G%9'62 0508 606'1E 06108 V66 0E SIETE 66608 PAIS PP ¥
ZTITESL 6£9°02 06685 95781 Sig0z GELBL 96E'02 90212 GEF 0T P AuEjd ¥
LELOY 858 06v'G €709 V'S 682G 158G 66F9 £0L°G 1Q 39150 fe
81T 8S BUSS 0S0°L 0L 905°2 %] 9060 2002 0808 GAY JLNOGUIM 3
05155 881 680°L POLL 0682 8159 €299 2529 I2iG BSAY SPleLHES [
LIT08 5601 10k 0826 8056 0168 LZL7OL GoL"ok €850) Ar] 1, UBIPESY LRIGN [F3
SYE09 1088 ZB9°L [ GEL 1189 9T L GBZ L voL'L (BN BNE1I0S [ pUepsbl L 2
275 88 SHO'LL Sk 0L 2701 ZELTH ZEVOL ZLLLL BLE 0L BY6 L1 Pd SUBjIBg I3
2% €6 0s (3 €2 9 €8 z £Fl ASfloI e [GqideD ot
SvF 6L [EG (=74 /EBT 9ES € EE £50°T zey [} (6102/vz/z0 92jA135 UEB5q) I0ASI T Py INOTE [
¥90'0F LIOG i PLLY YOG €15 eIvG €2y €OEY 18 19A9500Y 1 Ag idjpg sewon | 3
509779 1628 YeLL 7 9028 98’8 1198 806 895G A UOSISHST [ 15 JUSWILISAOL) Zt
GBLTLE A2 GOSE BZFT 8ELE YBET [ 6eL Y PELT SIAPUENOIS [ 8AY DUZL [ J0IEINOIE) BPISIRION 12
902 85 690'% ¥0L'C 29S 0B¥'L VL BLEL 1881 €504 AUSISAIN WBNOS [ AmH J1udos5 [
0L8'EZ VELE €89 Tr9T BO0E S59°Z 151 00T BYET DT [ 9Ay BUNOA SN 8
Bl Joquiasag IHUIBACN 180400 Jaquisjdag 18nGy Amp aunp ARl Judy yauey Auenuqad Amnuep ANYN ILOON| w3gwnN
3LNoY

6102 ESNONV 20} JLA 3phoy




